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Westbrook Elementary School {19239} still reflects

ite original character. It was designed by Howard Cutler
as a small, intimate school with a sense of tradition and
dignity created by the symmetrical balance and rlassical

Gemrgiwn style. Wezthrook Elementary Srhool is an all
“masonry construction of red brick walls, white trim (wood
cornicel, zlate (and metal) roof with wood dormer windows,
concrate footings and base, and  soms  steel bheams.
Although the building needs restoration, its Sfinest
features, such as the classical entrance poroh, multi-—
window bay windows iwith copper roofs) of the WIings, and

interior fireplaces still exist.

The original plan called for a =ix classroom school
conprised of a laterally extended five-part plan: central
building (75" X 54%) and two identical laterally euxtended
paxllenb (272" X 27%) connected by halls (which were
1774 ¥ 974" work  rooms). The end pavilions WeEr
terminated by chimney Jgtacks. This compositbon was
dBfPVed Ffrom traditional Beorgian domestic architecture.
The design was ruled by external and internal symmatry.,
which continued into the langdecape plan and, 1@ﬁ~mut of (57
wide) concrete sidewalks. The archltect 5 plan also
called for the extension of a road {later (Allan Terrace) to
the school. -

Cutler’s drawings reveal that the one- story pavilion
{with +u11 second floor in attic under hlpped roof? WAS
dealgneﬁ to house medcfaﬁérémms Gn sach Flumr' a reading
room, bathrooms and offbre were on the first floors; wWor bk
and activity rooms were situated on  the second  floor.
Cutler™s plans called for display cases Vnfhe first loor
entry hall {(which was perpendicular to the long, lateral
hall) and two staircases (one in the rears the other off
the central hall). Each of the smaller one-story
pavilions housed one classroom (with second level balcony
on  the inside). This overall plan became the basis for
school ; howevear, this canception WAaS modified
(probably for financial reasons) to Ccreate a more compact,
2CONOMY~CONSClous T-shape design without articulated
connecting halls (work rooms).

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY




P

M 3550
FHYSICAL DESCRIFPTION - {COMTINUED?

The center pavilion with its Pigh hipped Georgian
i oof {(copper  roof  surmounting slate roof) and simple
clasgical entry portico is the focus of the design. The
classical porch  with four 14" wide round wood columns,
fanlight, and slate roof stands on a concrete platform.
Wrought  diron railings were included in Cutler’s plan.
The front door is flanked by three 47 wide windows with
shutters {above were two dormer windows on each side).
All front and rear windows are 4° widesg side windows are
ITEY wide. The side and rear glevations also reflect the
original character, fenestration and Georgian style of this
school .

Cutler s design also called for asphalt tile floors on
cancrete in  the halls, tile bathroom floors with 474"
wainscobt, wood floors in classrooms, built-in books shelves
(often below windows), slate blackboards, amples natural

light and high ceilings to give a spacious gualitvy, The
most  outstanding rooms are those in bthe WirgE s what are
described as the kindergartens {although they have. bhesn
used  for obther purposss). Towdaoy, one of them is the
school s music  room. These rooms still have their
original  brick fireplaces, woodwork and rafters. Thes
fireplaces, which were not nesded for heating, were wsed

by the architect as svmbols of homa, hearth and family.

The building was erected in  1938-%,  With  the
exception of some plastering and plumbing, the school was
completed by January %, 1940, The children were moved in
the next month. Concrete sidwalks wers finished during
the Spring. The growth of the student population during
the war vears necessitated the erected of a temporary tweoe
room  building in 1942 {(destroved in 1955). Other so-
called temporary structures were built. Finally., major
permanent additions were completed in 1948 and 1955,
Fortunately, these building campaiogns were in the rear
and wside, but did inveolve modifying the northeast sechion
of Cutler design with a connecting corridor with skydomes

119355 .

REFOEITORIES AND SO0URCES

Central Records, Montgomery County Fublic Schools;

Comstruction Division, Montgomery County Fublic Schoolsg

Archives, The American Instituts of Architects;

"History of Westhrook Elementary School," Westbrook
F.T.8. File, Westbrook Elesmentary Schoolgy
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Westbrook Elementary School (1939 is an important
architectural landmark in the history of Montgomery County
and its public schools. It is the only Federal PFublic
Works school in the county. A plague in the school's main
hall identifies the bullding as a project of the Federal
Works Agency, Fublic Works Administration and includes the
names John M. Carmody, Federal Works figency and  Franklin
Delano Roosevelt, Fresident of the United Statss.

. This elementary school is alsc the product of the
o » phenomenal growth of the dashington, D.C. suburbs in

2 Montgomery County, Maryland. Between 1720 and 1940 the
number of students attending public school rose from &5, 195

A to 15,096, During the same period,  the county'=
{ enpenditures on schobls dramat1cally 1ncr&ased‘ reaching

- | . $2:437,770.83 in 19453

1
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cop . In particular, Nestmareland Hills: was opened in 1933
Vo R WaSE SO0N followed BY other  subdivisions and
devel opments, su;h as wegﬁgate. Nesthavan,and Green Acres.
At this t1me.' the children attended Somerset Elementary
School . However, three factors led to the establishment
of Westbrook Elementary School: the growing number of
yvoung children: the distance from their neighborhoods to
Somersset Elementary Schoolg and the lack of busses for
elementary school children in their area. f  fourth
problem was created by the great distance between home and
school. It was impossible for children in Westmoreland
Hills to walk home for lunch. A cafeteria was needed for
those children who could not walk home. Eventually., all
these problems were rescolved with the bu:ldlng of Westbrook

Elementary Schopl.
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STATEMENT OF SIGMNIFICANCE - (CONTINUED

In 1938, architect Howard Cutler was commissioned to
design Massachusetts Avenue Extended School {which became
Westhrook Elementary School). The commission WA
sponsored and built by the labor of the Federal @Works
Agency {(Federal Emergency Administration of Fublic Works),
which was one of the federal government’™s answers to  the
Great Depression of the 1930s.

During the 1920s and 1930, the gducational
architecturs in Montgomery County Was shapead ardcl
transformed by architect Howard Wright Cutler { -
1948 . Cutler WA S ot ) nationally Erown
architect, but  he Was a professional. Selecting
Howard Cutler A5 the principal designer of

Montgomery County public schools reveals the county’s
desire to project an image of professionalism  and
modernity, and to create & new academic image.

Howard Cutler came to Washinobon from New York State

with a professional training. Im Mew York, e worked in
the architectural offices of J. Foster Warner for one WEAN
and Gordon & Madden for seven vears. Cutler was & member

of  the Central MNew York Chapter of the Amsrican  Institubes
of Architects (AIA) before he was elected to the national
organization of the AIA in 1915, At this time, hse bhad
been in practice with his own firm, Hutchinson & Cutler,
for five years,®

As an architect, Cutler well represented the spirit

of early 20th century America m———— itsw preccoupation
with tradition and the American Renaissance (late 19th
and early 20th century), as well as its devotion o new
and modern approaches. At the same time, Dutler was a
practical architect who seens to have ogiven thought to
economical  and practical modern design. As  Cutler
brought standards of professionalism  and an  academic
wvision to his work, he ItTransformed county . school
architecture. During the 1930s, Howard Cutler defined
the academic image along traditional lines 3 often
relving L on o making refsrence to classical
architecture. Cutler was concerned with  the great

traditions and symbolic potential of architecture.

The classical disposition and Georgian style of
Westbrook relate to Cutlers grand academic institutions of
the 1920z (such as Bethesda-Chevy Chase). The Georoglan
is the name given to the English Barogus, a oclassical
17th arnd 18th century stvle. The English Barogue iz
known for its symmetry, dignity and  academicism, and  for
being more restrained than continental Barogue styles.
A variation of the Georgian was transplanted to the
English colonies in North America, including Virginia
and Maryland. Both
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE : (CONTINUED)

Williamsburg, Virginia, and Annapolis, Marvliand, are
Bronsr for their Georgian Colonial architecture.
bDeorgian  architecture was rejected by Americans atter the
American Revolution  because the stye was associated
with Erglish rule. The revived classicism of the
Amer i can Renalssanocs during  the late 19&h and sarly

Z20th century fostered & Georgian Revival.

During the 19350s, John . Rockefeller s
restoration of Williamsburg, Virginia, resulted in
ancther LBeorgian Revival. Ey this time, *the public®
perception of BGeorgian architecture was positive. s
& classical style, the LGeoraglan reprasented
tradition, civility, and stabilitvy. Most importantly, it
was associated with the roots of American culture, and
perceived of as an American stvle. The Georglan WA
E?lFM”mr.mszaLy viewsd a8 a shtyvlse that linked FmEEE L AN
culture o Fuwropessn civilization.

Howard Cutler was one of many architects inspirsd by
the Georglan Revival. His choice of the Georgian stvle
+ o schools in Momtogomery County was mors logical fthan
ong  might imitislly think. By selescting the Georgian,
Cutler made reference to Marviand s sarly history  and  to
@arly American educsational traditions. Harvard College,
Maa%achuaeftz, and William & Mary College Wi lliamaburgﬁ
Virginia, were the ftwo oldest colleges in Hm@r:ra. Their
garly buildings wers rendered in the Georgian stvle.

AL of this endows Westhrook Elementary School with
the character of & civic institution. Yet, at the same
time,  Cutler s use of BGBeorglian domesstic architecture as

his point of departure makes this school more house-liks,
thereby recalling the school house tradition of early Z0th
century Montgomery County.

NOTES
e See Hppendix, E. Buy Jewell, From One Room Lo

Open Space: A History of Montoomery County Schools
From 1732 to 1945, Rockville, Maryland:
Mormtgomery CUounty Fublic Schools, 1974,  T20-1.

= Farin M.E. Alexis’ s manuscript 11988) on the
architectural history of educational institubtions
in Montgomery County, 1%00-194% (Montgomery County
Historic Preservation Commission and Maryland
Historic Trust: includes & summary  of Howsed

Cutler’s architectural CareRr and his work for
the Montgomery County Board of Education.

Soms  valuable information on Cutler was  found
in the Archives of +the American Imstitute of
Architects (R 807 Rox 221, Folder 71).
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Allen Terrace, Westridge, between the communites of

Westhaven, glen Cove and Greenacres;

LISTALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE ) COUNTY
EEIFORM PREPARED BY | B -
NAME / TITLE
KARIN M.E. ALEXIS, PH. D., ART & ARCHITECTURAL HISTORY
ORGANIZA;HON
JUNE' 1988
STREET & NUMBER ) TELEPHONE
. 2449 Villanowma Drive ' ' 280-1107
CITY OR TOWN . . . STATE
Vienna, Virginia 22180 ‘

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was off1c1ally created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found .in .the
~ _Annotatéd Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
'~ 1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights. :

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401

(301) 267-1438 —

P8 t e




